

UEFA CHAMPIONS LEAGUE

2010/11 SEASON MATCH PRESS KIT





Group B - Matchday 4
Bloomfield Stadium, Tel Aviv
Tuesday 2 November 2010
20.45CET (21.45 local time)

Contents	
Previous meetings	2
Match background	3
Match facts	
Squad list	6
Head coach	
Match officials	9
Fixtures and results	10
Match-by-match lineups	13
Competition facts	
Team facts	
Legend	

This press kit includes information relating to this UEFA Champions League match. For more detailed factual information, and in-depth competition statistics, please refer to the matchweek press kit, which can be downloaded at: http://www.uefa.com/uefa/mediaservices/presskits/index.html













Bloomfield Stadium, Tel Aviv

Previous meetings

Head to Head

UEFA Champions League

Date	Stage	Match	Result	Venue	Goalscorers
20/10/10	GS	FC Schalke 04 - Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC	3-1	Gelsenkirchen	Raúl González 3, 58, Jurado 68;
					Shechter 90+3

		Home				Away			Final				Total					
	Pld	W	D	L	Pld	W	D	L	Pld	W	D	L	Pld	W	D	L	GF	GA
Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	1	1	3
FC Schalke 04	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	0	0	3	1

Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC - Record versus clubs from opponents' country

UEFA Europa League

Date	Stage	Match	Result	Venue	Goalscorers
17/12/09	GS	Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC - Hamburger SV	1-0	Tel Aviv	Yeboah 23
01/10/09	GS	Hamburger SV - Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC	4-2	•	Berg 5, 12, Elia 41, Zé Roberto 77; Shechter 36, Yeboah 61

FC Schalke 04 - Record versus clubs from opponents' country

None

Record versus clubs from opponents' country

		Home				Away			Final				Total					
	Pld	W	D	L	Pld	W	D	L	Pld	W	D	L	Pld	W	D	L	GF	GA
Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC	1	1	0	0	2	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	3	1	0	2	4	7
FC Schalke 04	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	0	0	3	1

Match background

In their last UEFA Champions League home game Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC found themselves two goals down inside 36 minutes, eventually succumbing 3-1 to Olympique Lyonnais. They will be determined to make amends in this return fixture with FC Schalke 04.

• The Israeli champions also went down 3-1 in Gelsenkirchen on Matchday 3, Raúl González scoring twice to take his tally in UEFA club competition to 70 goals. It was Hapoel's third successive Group B defeat while Schalke are second in the standings on six points, three adrift of Lyon.

Previous meetings

- That game at the Arena AufSchalke was the first competitive fixture between the clubs and the first time Schalke had faced a side from Israel.
- In last season's UEFA Europa League group stage Hapoel followed a 4-2 away defeat by Hamburger SV with a 1-0 home win. Etey Shechter was on the scoresheet in the away game.

Match background

- Only the third Israeli team to reach the group stage, Hapoel lost their opening two fixtures at SL Benfica, 2-0, and then at home to Lyon.
- The previous two Israeli teams to compete in the UEFA Champions League group stage, Maccabi Haifa FC and Maccabi Tel-Aviv FC, both finished bottom of their group. No team from that country has managed to win a group match in the competition proper in 11 attempts; the last victors were Maccabi Tel-Aviv, who beat AFC Ajax 2-1 on 3 November 2004.
- In the play-off round Hapoel drew 1-1 at home with FC Salzburg after a 3-2 away win. Eli Gutman's side had edged past FK Aktobe 3-2 on aggregate in the third qualifying round, winning 3-1 at home, while in the previous stage they defeated FK Željezničar 6-0 with all but one of the goals coming in Israel.
- Schalke, looking to repeat their achievement in their last UEFA Champions League appearance in 2007/08 when they reached the knockout rounds, went down 1-0 in Lyon on Matchday 1. They bounced back with a 2-0 home win against Benfica.

Team ties

- Shechter's late goal in a UEFA EURO 2012 qualifier at Ramat Gan could not prevent an Israel defeat by Croatia on 9 October. Gil Vermouth also played the full 90 minutes for the home side while Ivan Rakitić appeared as a second-half substitute for the visitors.
- Rakitić and Toto Tamuz came on as substitutes as Croatia beat Israel 1-0 in a UEFA EURO 2008 qualifier at the Maksimir Stadium in Zagreb on 13 October 2007. Ben Sahar and Dedi Ben-Dayan were unused replacements.
- Hans Sarpei was in the Ghana team that beat Nigeria 1-0 in the 2010 African Cup of Nations semi-final. Vincent Enyeama was in goal for the losing side.
- Raúl helped Spain to a 2-0 FIFA World Cup qualifying victory against Israel in October 2000. Walid Badier featured for Israel.
- Felix Magath was coach of the FC Bayern München team that won 1-0 in Tel Aviv against Maccabi Tel-Aviv in the 2004/05 UEFA Champions League group stage. The German side also won 5-1 in Munich.
- Kyriakos Papadopoulos helped Olympiacos FC to a 2-0 Greek Super League win at a Larissa FC side including Salim Toama on 30 August 2009.
- Klaas-Jan Huntelaar made his European debut in SC Heerenveen's 5-0 home win against Maccabi Petach-Tikva FC in the UEFA Cup first round in September 2004.

Match facts

Hapoel

UEFA milestones

Hapoel have conceded 95 goals in UEFA competition.

UEFA Champions League statistics

• Etey Shechter and Dedi Ben-Dayan will each incur a suspension with their next yellow cards.

Latest domestic information

• Saturday 30 October: Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC 3-2 Hapoel Beer-Sheva FC

(Tamuz 27 51, Zahavi 67; Asulin 71, Melikson 90+3)

Enyeama; Bondarv, Badier, Da Silva, Ben-Dayan; Yadin (Abutbul 61), Toama (Shivhon 63), Zahavi (Fransman 74), Vermouth; Sahar, Tamuz

- Salim Toama made his first start of the campaign as Eli Gutman's side claimed a fourth successive Ligat ha'Al victory.
- Hapoel have kept just one clean sheet in their last 15 UEFA Champions League and league games.
- Douglas da Silva (56) and substitute Toama (90) registered their first league goals of the season as Hapoel came from behind to win 2-1 at Maccabi Petach-Tikva FC on 24 October.
- Toama, who returned to Hapoel this summer after spells at R. Standard de Liège and Larissa FC and also counts Petach-Tikva among his former clubs, had not scored for the club since an almost identical free-kick against Maccabi Tel-Aviv FC in May 2007.
- Two days later Hapoel's League Cup ambitions ended with a 1-0 loss at home to Maccabi Netanya FC their fourth defeat in five group stage outings. With one match to come, against Maccabi Tel-Aviv on 10 November, Gutman's side are resigned to finishing bottom of the four-team section.
- Hapoel suffered just one reverse en route to the title last season: they lost two in their opening four games this time around, 1-0 at Hapoel Haifa FC, and 4-2 at home to Hapoel Ironi Kiryat Shmona FC.

Injury news

- Avihay Yadin went off with an ankle injury against Hapoel Beer-Sheva.
- Ben-Dayan made his first appearance in three weeks against Maccabi Petach-Tikva following a knee injury.
- Shechter will sit out Matchday 4 after tearing his right hamstring at Maccabi Petach-Tikva.
- Romain Rocchi has been ruled out until the new year after undergoing an operation on stomach and groin problems.
- Mahran Lala could be out for the season after undergoing surgery on ruptured knee ligaments suffered in a 3-2 League Cup win against Maccabi Tel-Aviv on 14 August.

Schalke

UEFA milestones

• Schalke have scored 46 goals in the European Champion Clubs' Cup and 195 in UEFA competition.

UEFA Champions League statistics

• Jefferson Farfán's next yellow card will incur a ban.

Latest domestic information

• Saturday 30 October: FC Schalke 04 0-1 Bayer 04 Leverkusen (Sam 65)

Neuer; Uchida, Höwedes, Metzelder, Schmitz (Matip 46, Gavranović 86); Kluge (Edu 72), Farfán, Rakitić, Jurado; Raúl, Huntelaar

- Mario Gavranović made his first appearance of the season for Schalke after injuries to Lukas Schmitz and Schmitz's half-time replacement, Joel Matip.
- Schalke have lost eight of their 16 fixtures in all competitions this term, the same as in the whole of 2009/10.
- Schalke and VfL Borussia Mönchengladbach are the only Bundesliga sides yet to win at home in the league this term.
- Schalke advanced to the last 16 of the German Cup on 26 October, José Manuel Jurado scoring the only goal at FSV Frankfurt. They will now travel to another second-tier side, FC Augsburg, on 21/22 December.

- It was Magath's side's second trip to Frankfurt in three days having drawn 0-0 with Eintracht Frankfurt on 23 October their 100th goalless draw in the Bundesliga but first this season.
- Klaas-Jan Huntelaar has scored 14 goals in 16 games for club and country this season.
- Schalke were bottom of the Bundesliga after losing their opening four league games, their worst ever start to a top-flight campaign. The last time they started with even two league losses, in 1987/88 when they eventually lost their first three matches they were relegated.

Injury news

- Schmitz suffered a hip problem on Saturday and has been ruled out of the trip to Israel. His half-time replacement, Matip, also went off with injury.
- Junmin Hao will also sit out Matchday 4 having undergone an appendectomy on 29 October.
- Jermaine Jones, who missed the whole of last season with a tibia injury, suffered an ankle problem at FSV and missed the Leverkusen loss.
- Tim Hoogland has not featured this term due to a knee problem and pancreatitis, but has returned to training.
- Levan Kenia has not played since 25 October 2009 due to an ankle problem.
- Christian Pander remains sidelined with muscular problems that forced him to miss all of last season.

Miscellaneous

• Jones, who played three friendly internationals for Germany in 2008 and 2009, made his debut for the United States against Poland on 9 October.

Squad list

Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC

						Current season						All-t	ime		
						QU	AL	U	CL	Lea	gue	U	CL	UE	FA
No.	Player	Nat.	DoB	Age	D	Pld	Gls	Pld	Gls	Pld	Gls	Pld	Gls	Pld	Gls
Go	alkeepers														
1	Vincent Enyeama	NGA	29/08/82	28	-	4	1	3	1	8	-	3	1	35	3
22	Galil Ben-Shanan	ISR	27/06/82	28	-	2	-	-	-	-	•	-	-	2	-
33	Arie Yanko	ISR	21/12/91	18	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	ı	-
De	fenders														
3	Douglas da Silva	BRA	07/03/84	26	-	6	1	3	-	7	1	3	-	27	2
4	Dani Bondarv	ISR	07/02/87	23	-	-	-	2	-	2	•	2	-	22	-
6	Bevan Fransman	RSA	31/10/83	27	-	3	-	2	-	5	•	2	-	11	-
10	Walid Badier	ISR	12/03/74	36	_	6	-	3	-	6	-	9	1	72	9
19	Dedi Ben-Dayan	ISR	22/11/78	31	*	5	-	2	-	6	-	2	-	31	3
23	Omri Kende	ISR	06/07/86	24	-	6	-	1	-	6	-	1	-	16	-
24	Yehuda Huta	ISR	19/02/89	21	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-
25	Gal Shish	ISR	28/01/89	21	-	3	-	1	-	3	-	1	-	8	-
Mi	dfielders														
7	Yossi Shivhon	ISR	22/03/82	28	-	5	1	2	-	8	1	2	-	11	2
14	Gil Vermouth	ISR	05/08/85	25	-	6	-	3	-	8	2	3	-	33	4
15	Salim Toama	ISR	09/08/79	31	-	-	-	1	-	5	1	1	-	47	6
18	Shay Abutbul	ISR	16/01/83	27	-	2	-	2	-	6	-	2	-	24	1
21	Roei Gordana	ISR	06/07/90	20	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	-	-	-
26	Avihay Yadin	ISR	26/10/86	24	-	6	-	3	-	8	•	3	-	21	1
27	Romain Rocchi	FRA	02/10/81	29	-	6	-	2	-	3	-	2	-	8	-
Fo	rwards														
9	Etey Shechter	ISR	22/02/87	23	*	5	1	3	1	5	3	3	1	22	5
11	Ben Sahar	ISR	10/08/89	21	-	4	2	3	-	8	1	3	-	7	2
12	Victor Mare	ISR	31/05/89	21	-	4	-	-	-	3	1	-	-	9	-
16	Eran Zahavi	ISR	25/07/87	23	_	6	2	3	-	8	4	3	-	26	3
17	Mahran Lala	ISR	07/03/82	28	-	4	3	-	-	-	-	-	-	19	6
99	Toto Tamuz	ISR	01/04/88	22	-	-	-	3	-	6	4	3	-	8	-
Со	ach														
_	Eli Gutman	ISR	24/02/58	52	-	6	-	3	-	-	-	3	-	44	-

FC Schalke 04

					Current season					All-time				
					QU	AL	U	CL	Lea	gue	U	CL	UE	FA
No Player	Nat.	DoB	Age	D	Pld	Gls	Pld	Gls	Pld	Gls	Pld	Gls	Pld	Gls
Goalkeepers														
1 Manuel Neuer	GER	27/03/86	24	-	-	-	3	-	10	-	13	-	17	-
33 Mathias Schober	GER	08/04/76	34	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	5	-
36 Lars Unnerstall	GER	20/07/90	20	-	1	-	-	-	-	•	-	-	1	-
Defenders														
2 Hans Sarpei	GHA	28/06/76	34	-	1	-	2	-	5	•	2	-	23	-
3 Sergio Escudero	ESP	02/09/89	21	-	ı	-	-	-	-	•	-	-	1	-
4 Benedikt Höwedes	GER	29/02/88	22	-	ı	-	2	-	9	•	5	-	11	-
5 Nicolas Plestan	FRA	02/06/81	29	-	1	-	1	-	3	•	11	-	22	1
14 Kyriakos Papadopoulos	GRE	23/02/92	18	-	-	-	1	-	3	-	1	-	3	-
21 Christoph Metzelder	GER	05/11/80	29	-	-	-	2	-	9	-	19	-	30	-
22 Atsuto Uchida	JPN	27/03/88	22	-	-	-	2	-	6	-	2	-	2	-
35 Frank Fahrenhorst	GER	24/09/77	33	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	8	-	8	-
39 Marvin Pachan	GER	11/04/90	20	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Midfielders														
8 Junmin Hao	CHN	24/03/87	23	-	1	-	1	-	3	•	1	-	1	-
10 Ivan Rakitić	CRO	10/03/88	22	-	-	-	3	-	9	1	10	-	27	1
11 Alexander Baumjohann	GER	23/01/87	23	-	ı	-	-	-	3	•	-	-	1	-
12 Peer Kluge	GER	22/11/80	29	-	-	-	2	-	5	-	2	-	9	1
13 Lukas Schmitz	GER	13/10/88	22	_	-	-	3	-	7	-	3	-	3	-
18 José Manuel Jurado	ESP	29/06/86	24	-	-	-	2	1	7	•	9	1	30	2
19 Mario Gavranović	SUI	24/11/89	20	_	-	-	-	-	1	•	-	-	-	-
23 Jermaine Jones	USA	03/11/81	28	-	-	-	3	-	7	1	13	1	18	1
27 Ciprian Deac	ROU	16/02/86	24	-	-	-	1	-	1	•	3	-	10	-
28 Christoph Moritz	GER	27/01/90	20	-	•	-	2	-	6	-	2	-	2	-
32 Joel Matip	CMR	08/08/91	19	-	-	-	3	-	10	-	3	-	3	-
40 Predrag Stevanović	SRB	03/03/91	19	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
41 Danny Latza	GER	07/12/89	20	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Forwards														
7 Raúl González	ESP	27/06/77	33	-	-	-	3	2	10	1	133	68	141	70
9 Edu	BRA	30/11/81	28	-	•	-	-	-	8	1	-	-	1	-
17 Jefferson Farfán	PER	26/10/84	26	*	-	-	3	1	7	1	37	5	46	6
25 Klaas-Jan Huntelaar	NED	12/08/83	27	-	-	-	3	1	8	5	8	2	38	20
26 Erik Jendrišek	SVK	26/10/86	24	-	-	-	-	-	2	-	-	-	1	-
Coach														
- Felix Magath	GER	26/07/53	57	-	-	-	3	-	-	-	35	-	66	-

Head coach

Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC: Eli Gutman

Date of birth: 24 February 1958

Nationality: Israeli

Playing career: Hapoel Haifa FC, Beitar Netanya FC, Maccabi Neve Shanan FC, Maccabi Kiryat Bialik FC Coaching career: Maccabi Kiryat Bialik FC, Beitar Haifa FC, Maccabi Tirat Carmel FC, Maccabi Tamra FC, Hapoel Zafririm Holon FC, Maccabi Herzliya FC, Hapoel Beit Sha'an FC, Hapoel Beer-Sheva FC (twice), Hapoel Haifa FC (twice), Beitar Jerusalem FC, Hapoel Petach-Tikva FC, Enosis Neon Paralimni FC, Maccabi Netanya FC, AEL Limassol FC, Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC

- Had a low-key career as a midfielder before hanging up his boots at 28, moving into coaching with fifth division Maccabi Kiryat Bialik FC. Completed a sports science degree and became a teacher as well as coaching in local divisions after national service as a naval officer.
- Gutman's first taste of top-flight football came in 1990 when he spent two years as assistant coach at Maccabi Haifa. Won his first major honour in 1997, leading Hapoel Beer-Sheva to Israeli State Cup success.
- Returned to boyhood club Hapoel Haifa in 1997, clinching a league championship two years later.
- Indifferent stints at Beitar Jerusalem and Hapoel Petach-Tikva preceded successful spells with Cypriot sides Paralimni and AEL. Responded to bottom-of-the-table Hapoel Tel-Aviv's rescue call in 2007, steering the club to seventh position and the State Cup final.
- A dramatic climax to 2009/10 brought the league and cup double in a three-day period. At the start of the next season, Hapoel emerged through three qualifying rounds to reach the UEFA Champions League group stage for the first time.

FC Schalke 04: Felix Magath

Date of birth: 26 July 1953 Nationality: German

Playing career: 1. FC Saarbrücken, Hamburger SV

Coaching career: Hamburger SV, 1. FC Nürnberg, Werder Bremen, Eintracht Frankfurt, VfB Stuttgart, FC Bayern

München, VfL Wolfsburg, FC Schalke 04

- An elegant creative midfielder, Felix Magath's most successful coaching assignment to date came at Bayern where he won the double in 2005 and 2006, more title glory coming at Wolfsburg in 2009.
- The son of a Puerto Rican soldier in the US Army and a German mother, Magath won 43 caps for West Germany encompassing victory in the 1980 UEFA European Championship and the 1982 and 1986 FIFA World Cups, both of which brought runners-up medals. Magath made more than 300 Bundesliga appearances during ten years at Hamburg, getting the only goal of the 1983 European Champion Clubs' Cup final against Juventus.
- His coaching career also started at Hamburg, Magath moving onto Nürnberg, Bremen, Eintracht and Stuttgart, where he was voted coach of the year in 2002/03. He switched to Bayern in 2004 and won the title at the first attempt having set a Bundesliga record of 15 successive wins. The German Cup was also acquired and Magath repeated the double triumph the next season.
- Left Munich in January 2007, joining Wolfsburg that summer and guiding the club to the first league title in their history two years later.
- Magath decided against taking the club into the UEFA Champions League, instead switching to Schalke. He led the Gelsenkirchen outfit to second place behind Bayern in his first season.

Match officials

Referee
Assistant referees
Additional assistant referee
Additional assistant referee
Fourth official
UEFA Delegate
UEFA Referee observer

Frank De Bleeckere (BEL)
Peter Hermans (BEL), Walter Vromans (BEL)
Christof Virant (BEL)
Jean-Baptist Bultynck (BEL)
Johan Verbist (BEL)
David George Collins (WAL)
Livio Bazzoli (ITA)

Referee

Name	Date of birth	UEFA Champions League matches	UEFA matches
Frank De Bleeckere	01/07/1966	40	105

- Frank De Bleeckere is carrying on a family tradition which has endured for more than four decades. De Bleeckere's grandfather was a referee in Belgium in the 1950s and 1960s, and his father René a top-flight match official 20 years ago.
- A PR manager born in Oudenaarde, De Bleeckere started refereeing in 1984, oversaw his first top-flight match in 1995 and received his FIFA badge in 1998. The same year he officiated at the UEFA European Under-16 Championship, and guickly graduated to UEFA Champions League and UEFA Cup duties.
- He sandwiched UEFA EURO 2004, where he was one of four specialist fourth officials, with appearances at the 2003 FIFA U-20 World Cup and 2005 FIFA U-17 World Cup, where he refereed the final between Mexico and Brazil. De Bleeckere had earlier overseen a showpiece closer to home, the 2005 Belgian Cup final.
- At the 2006 FIFA World Cup De Bleeckere took charge of four matches and he was also the referee for three games at UEFA EURO 2008.
- Has continued to be a regular in the UEFA Champions League and oversaw the 2007/08 UEFA Cup semi-final second leg between ACF Fiorentina and Rangers FC. Also took charge of FC Barcelona's defeat of FC Shakhtar Donetsk in the 2009 UEFA Super Cup and three games at the 2010 World Cup.

UEFA Champions League matches involving teams from the two countries involved in this match

Date	Competition	Stage	Home	Away	Result	Venue
17/10/01	UCL	GS	FC Bayern München	FC Spartak Moskva	5-1	Munich
12/03/03	UCL	2ndGS	Borussia Dortmund	FC Lokomotiv Moskva	3-0	Dortmund
23/02/05	UCL	KO1	SV Werder Bremen	Olympique Lyonnais	0-3	Bremen
21/02/06	UCL	KO1	FC Bayern München	AC Milan	1-1	Munich
20/02/07	UCL	KO1	Real Madrid CF	FC Bayern München	3-2	Madrid
28/11/07	UCL	GS	Valencia CF	FC Schalke 04	0-0	Valencia
27/08/08	UCL	QR3	Club Atlético de Madrid	FC Schalke 04	4-0	Madrid
30/03/10	UCL	QF	FC Bayern München	Manchester United FC	2-1	Munich

Other matches involving teams from either of the two countries involved in this match

Date	Competition	Stage	Home	Away	Result	Venue
26/11/98	U16	QR	Germany	Serbia	2-0	Saarbrucken
16/09/99	UCUP	R1	Celtic FC	Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC	2-0	Glasgow
12/09/00	UCUP	R1	1. FK Drnovice	TSV 1860 München	0-0	Drnovice
12/06/08	EURO	GS	Croatia	Germany	2-1	Klagenfurt
07/05/09	UCUP	SF	Hamburger SV	SV Werder Bremen	2-3	Hamburg

Fixtures and results

Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC

Date	Competition	Opponent	Result	Goalscorers
13/07/10	UCL	FK Željezničar (H)	W 5-0	Lala 10, 31, 38, Shivhon 12, Bešlija 28 (og)
21/07/10	UCL	FK Željezničar (A)	W 1-0	Douglas da Silva 76
28/07/10	UCL	FK Aktobe (A)	L 0-	
03/08/10	UCL	FK Aktobe (H)	W 3-	Zahavi 16, Sahar 31, Ba 35 (og)
18/08/10	UCL	FC Salzburg (A)	W 3-2	Enyeama 3 (p), Sahar 44, Shechter 53
21/08/10	League	Hapoel Haifa FC (A)	L 0-	
24/08/10	UCL	FC Salzburg (H)	D 1-	Zahavi 90+2
28/08/10	League	Hapoel Ashkelon FC (H)	W 5-	Zahavi 5, 21, Shivhon 16, Vermouth 23, 76
11/09/10	League	Hapoel Akko FC (A)	D 2-2	Mare 75, Tamuz 84
14/09/10	UCL	SL Benfica (A)	L 0-2	2
25/09/10	League	Hapoel Ironi Kiryat Shmona FC (H)	L 2-4	Shechter 10, 54
29/09/10	UCL	Olympique Lyonnais (H)	L 1-3	Enyeama 79 (p)
02/10/10	League	Maccabi Netanya FC (A)	W 3-	Tamuz 11, Sahar 70, Shechter 82
16/10/10	League	Maccabi Tel-Aviv FC (H)	W 1-0	Zahavi 3
20/10/10	UCL	FC Schalke 04 (A)	L 1-3	Shechter 90+3
24/10/10	League	Maccabi Petach-Tikva FC (A)	W 2-	Douglas da Silva 56, Toama 90
30/10/10	League	Hapoel Beer-Sheva FC (H)	W 3-2	? Tamuz 27, 51, Zahavi 67
02/11/10	UCL	FC Schalke 04 (H)		
08/11/10	League	Maccabi Haifa FC (A)		
13/11/10	League	Beitar Jerusalem FC (H)		
20/11/10	League	Bnei Sakhnin FC (A)		
24/11/10	UCL	SL Benfica (H)		
27/11/10	League	FC Ashdod (H)		
04/12/10	League	Hapoel Petach-Tikva FC (A)		
07/12/10	UCL	Olympique Lyonnais (A)		
11/12/10	League	Bnei Yehuda Tel-Aviv FC (A)		
18/12/10	League	Hapoel Ramat Gan FC (H)		
01/01/11	League	Hapoel Haifa FC (H)		
08/01/11	League	Hapoel Akko FC (A)		
15/01/11	League	Hapoel Petach-Tikva FC (H)		
22/01/11	League	Hapoel Ironi Kiryat Shmona FC (A)		
29/01/11	League	Hapoel Ramat Gan FC (H)		
05/02/11	League	Maccabi Tel-Aviv FC (H)		
12/02/11	League	FC Ashdod (A)		
19/02/11	League	Maccabi Haifa FC (H)		
26/02/11	League	Maccabi Netanya FC (A)		
05/03/11	League	Maccabi Petach-Tikva FC (H)		

Bloomfield Stadium, Tel Aviv

Pos.	Clubs	Pld	W	D	L	GF	GA	Pts
1	Maccabi Haifa FC	8	5	3	0	13	8	18
2	Hapoel Ironi Kiryat Shmona FC	8	5	2	1	18	11	17
3	Maccabi Tel-Aviv FC	8	5	1	2	11	4	16
4	Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC	8	5	1	2	18	12	16
5	Maccabi Netanya FC	8	4	3	1	15	7	15
6	Maccabi Petach-Tikva FC	8	4	1	3	14	10	13
7	Hapoel Akko FC	8	3	3	2	15	11	12
8	Hapoel Beer-Sheva FC	8	3	2	3	9	10	11
9	Hapoel Haifa FC	8	3	2	3	9	10	11
10	Bnei Yehuda Tel-Aviv FC	8	3	2	3	8	9	11
11	Hapoel Ashkelon FC	8	2	4	2	9	14	10
12	FC Ashdod	8	2	3	3	11	13	9
13	Beitar Jerusalem FC	8	1	2	5	11	16	5
14	Hapoel Petach-Tikva FC	8	0	3	5	7	16	3
15	Bnei Sakhnin FC	8	0	2	6	4	15	2
16	Hapoel Ramat Gan FC	8	1	2	5	5	11	1

FC Schalke 04

Date	Competition	Opponent	Result		Goalscorers
16/08/10	Cup	VfR Aalen (A)	W 2	2-1	Farfán 42, 46
21/08/10	League	Hamburger SV (A)	L 1	-2	Farfán 80
28/08/10	League	Hannover 96 (H)	L 1	-2	Jones 82
10/09/10	League	TSG 1899 Hoffenheim (A)	L 0)-2	
14/09/10	UCL	Olympique Lyonnais (A)	L 0)-1	
19/09/10	League	Borussia Dortmund (H)	L 1	-3	Huntelaar 89
22/09/10	League	SC Freiburg (A)	W 2	2-1	Rakitić 9, Huntelaar 87
25/09/10	League	VfL Borussia Mönchengladbach (H)	D 2	2-2	Huntelaar 52, Raúl González 87
29/09/10	UCL	SL Benfica (H)	W 2	2-0	Farfán 73, Huntelaar 85
02/10/10	League	1. FC Nürnberg (A)	L 1	-2	Huntelaar 74
16/10/10	League	VfB Stuttgart (H)	D 2	2-2	Edu 29, Huntelaar 80 (p)
20/10/10	UCL	Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC (H)	W 3	3-1	Raúl González 3, 58, Jurado 68
23/10/10	League	Eintracht Frankfurt (A)	D 0)-0	
26/10/10	Cup	FSV Frankfurt (A)	W 1	- 0	Jurado 12
30/10/10	League	Bayer 04 Leverkusen (H)	L 0)-1	
02/11/10	UCL	Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC (A)			
05/11/10	League	FC St. Pauli (H)			
13/11/10	League	VfL Wolfsburg (A)			
20/11/10	League	SV Werder Bremen (H)			
24/11/10	UCL	Olympique Lyonnais (H)			
27/11/10	League	1. FC Kaiserslautern (A)			
04/12/10	League	FC Bayern München (H)			
07/12/10	UCL	SL Benfica (A)			
12/12/10	League	1. FSV Mainz 05 (A)			
18/12/10	League	1. FC Köln (H)			
22/12/10	Cup	FC Augsburg (A)			
15/01/11	League	Hamburger SV (H)			
22/01/11	League	Hannover 96 (A)			
29/01/11	League	TSG 1899 Hoffenheim (H)			
05/02/11	League	Borussia Dortmund (A)			
12/02/11	League	SC Freiburg (H)			
19/02/11	League	VfL Borussia Mönchengladbach (A)			
26/02/11	League	1. FC Nürnberg (H)			
05/03/11	League	VfB Stuttgart (A)			
12/03/11	League	Eintracht Frankfurt (H)			

Pos.	Clubs	Pld	W	D	L	GF	GA	Pts
1	Borussia Dortmund	10	8	1	1	23	7	25
2	1. FSV Mainz 05	10	8	0	2	19	10	24
3	TSG 1899 Hoffenheim		5	3	2	21	13	18
4	Bayer 04 Leverkusen		5	3	2	19	15	18
5	Eintracht Frankfurt		5	1	4	17	10	16
6	Hannover 96	10	5	1	4	13	16	16
7	FC Bayern München	10	4	3	3	12	10	15
8	Hamburger SV	10	4	3	3	15	14	15
9	1. FC Nürnberg	10	4	3	3	14	14	15
10	SC Freiburg	10	5	0	5	16	18	15
11	SV Werder Bremen	10	4	2	4	19	21	14
12	VfL Wolfsburg	10	4	1	5	17	16	13
13	FC St. Pauli	10	4	1	5	12	15	13
14	1. FC Kaiserslautern	10	3	1	6	13	18	10
15	1. FC Köln	10	2	2	6	12	19	8
16	VfB Stuttgart	10	2	1	7	16	19	7
17	FC Schalke 04	10	1	3	6	10	17	6
18	VfL Borussia Mönchengladbach	10	1	3	6	14	30	6

Match-by-match lineups

Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC

Second qualifying round

(13/07/10)

H. Tel-Aviv 5-0 Željezničar

Goals: 1-0 Lala 10, 2-0 Shivhon 12, 3-0 Bešlija 28(o.g.), 4-0 Lala 31, 5-0 Lala 38

Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC: Ben-Shanan, Douglas da Silva (Fransman 65), Shivhon (Mare 74), Shechter, Badier, Vermouth, Zahavi, Lala (Rocchi 56), Ben-Dayan, Kende, Yadin

(21/07/10)

Željezničar 0-1 H. Tel-Aviv (agg: 0-6)

Goals: 0-1 Douglas da Silva 76

Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC: Ben-Shanan, Douglas da Silva, Shivhon (Mare 60), Shechter, Badier, Vermouth, Zahavi (Shish 71), Lala (Rocchi 46), Ben-Dayan, Kende, Yadin

Third qualifying round

(28/07/10)

Aktobe 1-0 H. Tel-Aviv Goals: 1-0 Smakov 67(pen)

Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC: Enyeama, Douglas da Silva, Shechter, Badier, Vermouth, Zahavi, Lala (Sahar 57), Ben-Dayan, Kende, Yadin, Rocchi (Shivhon 68)

(03/08/10)

H. Tel-Aviv 3-1 Aktobe (agg: 3-2)

Goals: 1-0 Zahavi 16, 2-0 Sahar 31, 3-0 Ba 35(o.g.), 3-1 Tleshev 90

Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC: Enyeama, Douglas da Silva, Shivhon (Rocchi 64), Shechter, Badier, Sahar (Lala 54), Vermouth, Zahavi (Abutbul 70), Kende, Shish, Yadin

Play-offs

(18/08/10)

Salzburg 2-3 H. Tel-Aviv

Goals: 0-1 Enyeama 3(pen), 1-1 Pokrivač 28, 1-2 Sahar 44, 1-3 Shechter 53, 2-3 Wallner 67(pen)

Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC: Enyeama, Douglas da Silva, Shivhon (Rocchi 72), Shechter, Badier, Sahar (Mare 79), Vermouth (Fransman 90+1), Zahavi, Ben-Dayan, Kende, Yadin

(24/08/10)

H. Tel-Aviv 1-1 Salzburg (agg: 4-3)

Goals: 0-1 Douglas da Silva 42(o.g.), 1-1 Zahavi 90+2

Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC: Enyeama, Douglas da Silva, Badier, Sahar (Shish 90+1), Mare (Fransman 65), Vermouth, Zahavi, Ben-Dayan, Kende, Yadin, Rocchi (Abutbul 74)

Group B

Standings

Club		W	D	L	GF	GA	Pts
Olympique Lyonnais		3	0	0	6	1	9
FC Schalke 04		2	0	1	5	2	6
SL Benfica		1	0	2	2	4	3
Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC		0	0	3	2	8	0

Matchday 1 (14/09/10)

Lyon 1-0 Schalke Goals: 1-0 Bastos 21

FC Schalke 04: Neuer, Sarpei (Schmitz 75), Höwedes, Plestan, Raúl González, Rakitić, Farfán, Jones (Kluge 70), Huntelaar, Deac (Matip 45),

Moritz

Benfica 2-0 H. Tel-Aviv

Goals: 1-0 Luisão 21, 2-0 Óscar Cardozo 68

Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC: Enyeama, Douglas da Silva, Bondarv, Fransman (Badier 74), Shechter, Sahar (Tamuz 58), Vermouth, Zahavi, Ben-Dayan,

Yadin, Rocchi (Shivhon 61)

Matchday 2 (29/09/10)

H. Tel-Aviv 1-3 Lyon

Goals: 0-1 Bastos 7(pen), 0-2 Bastos 36, 1-2 Enyeama 79(pen), 1-3 Pjanić 90+4

Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC: Enyeama, Douglas da Silva, Bondarv, Shechter, Badier, Sahar (Tamuz 76), Vermouth, Zahavi (Abutbul 59), Ben-Dayan,

Yadin, Rocchi (Shivhon 59)

Schalke 2-0 Benfica

Goals: 1-0 Farfán 73, 2-0 Huntelaar 85

FC Schalke 04: Neuer, Raúl González, Rakitić (Jones 66), Schmitz, K. Papadopoulos, Farfán, Jurado (Kluge 78), Metzelder, Uchida (Sarpei 58),

Huntelaar, Matip

Matchday 3 (20/10/10)

Schalke 3-1 H. Tel-Aviv

Goals: 1-0 Raúl González 3, 2-0 Raúl González 58, 3-0 Jurado 68, 3-1 Shechter 90+3

FC Schalke 04: Neuer, Höwedes, Raúl González, Schmitz, Farfán (Junmin 67), Jurado, Metzelder, Uchida, Jones (Matip 75), Huntelaar, Moritz

(Rakitić 53)

Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC: Enyeama, Douglas da Silva, Shechter, Badier, Vermouth, Zahavi, Abutbul (Toama 57), Kende, Shish, Yadin (Fransman 73),

Tamuz (Sahar 58)

Matchday 4 (02/11/10)

H. Tel-Aviv v Schalke

Matchday 5 (24/11/10)

Schalke v Lyon

H. Tel-Aviv v Benfica

Matchday 6 (07/12/10)

Lyon v H. Tel-Aviv Benfica v Schalke

Competition facts

• UEFA Champions League: Group stage milestones

Holders FC Internazionale Milano are looking to avoid becoming the first defending champions to fail to get through a group stage since the UEFA Champions League began. (This record, like the others, includes the seasons between 1999/2000 and 2002/03 that featured a second group stage).

In 1992/93, FC Barcelona were the reigning European Champion Clubs' Cup holders and were beaten 4-3 on aggregate in the second round by PFC CSKA Moskva.

S.S. Lazio goalkeeper Marco Ballotta became the oldest player to compete in the UEFA Champions League in 2007/08 when he featured against Olympiacos FC on Matchday 1 at the age of 43 years and 168 days. The record was previously held by Alessandro Costacurta, the AC Milan defender who played against AEK Athens FC in 2006/07 at the age of 40 years and 211 days. Ballotta was aged 43 years 252 days when he featured against Real Madrid CF on Matchday 6.

Javier Zanetti is the oldest player to score in the competition, aged 37 years and 72 days, having found the net for FC Internazionale Milano in their 4-3 defeat of Tottenham Hotspur FC on 20 October 2010.

Celestine Babayaro is the youngest player to have appeared in the UEFA Champions League. He was 16 years and 87 days when he started for RSC Anderlecht against FC Steaua Bucureşti on 23 November 1994. He was then sent off in the 37th minute.

Barcelona and Manchester United have both finished as group winners on 11 occasions, one more than Milan and Real Madrid.

Four teams have recorded six successive victories in a UEFA Champions League group stage: Milan (1992/93), Paris Saint-Germain FC (1994/95), FC Spartak Moskva (1995/96) and Barcelona (2002/03, first group stage).

Ten teams have gone through a UEFA Champions League group stage without picking up a single point, including Maccabi Haifa FC and Debreceni VSC in 2009/10. The other eight are: FC Dynamo Kyiv (2007/08), PFC Levski Sofia (2006/07), SK Rapid Wien (2005/06), RSC Anderlecht (2004/05), FC Spartak Moskva and Bayer 04 Leverkusen (2002/03, first and second group stage respectively), Fenerbahçe SK (2001/02, first group stage) and 1. FC Košice (1997/98).

Manchester United scored 20 goals in the 1998/99 group stage, more than any other side has managed. Barcelona scored 19 times in the 1999/2000 first group stage.

Debrecen conceded 19 goals in their six outings in 2009/10, equalling the record let in during a group stage set by Dynamo Kyiv (2007/08) and Ferencvárosi TC in 1995/96.

No team has ever gone through a UEFA Champions League group stage without conceding a goal. Milan (1992/93), AFC Ajax (1995/96), Juventus (1996/97 and 2004/05), Chelsea FC (2005/06), Liverpool FC (2005/06) and Villarreal CF (2005/06) all let in just one.

Before their 3-1 win against Sporting Clube de Portugal on Matchday 6 of the 2006/07 campaign, FC Spartak Moskva went 22 games without a victory in the competition, surpassing the unwanted record set by AEK Athens FC on Matchday 3 of the same campaign.

The lowest total for a team qualifying from the group stage is seven points. The first to do it, since three points for a win was introduced in 1995/96, were Legia Warszawa that same season before FC Dynamo Kyiv and Bayer Leverkusen managed it in 1999/2000 and Liverpool in 2001/02. FC Lokomotiv Moskva and eventual finalists Juventus both progressed with seven points in 2002/03, a feat achieved by Rangers FC and Werder Bremen in 2005/06.

Team facts

Hapoel Tel-Aviv FC

Formed: 1927

Nickname: Ha'adumim (The Reds)

UEFA club competition honours (runners-up in brackets)

None

Domestic honours (most recent triumph in brackets)

League title: 13 (2010) State Cup: 13 (2010)

Ten-year European record (UEFA Champions League unless indicated otherwise)

2009/10: UEFA Europa League round of 32

2008/09: UEFA Cup first round **2007/08:** UEFA Cup group stage **2006/07:** UEFA Cup round of 32

2005/06: Did not take part in UEFA club competition **2004/05:** Did not take part in UEFA club competition

2003/04: UEFA Cup first round 2002/03: UEFA Cup second round 2001/02: UEFA Cup quarter-finals 2000/01: second qualifying round

Records

UEFA club competition

· Biggest home win

5-1: Hapoel Tel-Aviv v SK Rapid Wien 22/10/09, UEFA Europa League group stage

· Biggest away win

0-4: FC Kärnten v Hapoel Tel-Aviv 19/09/02, UEFA Cup first round first leg

· Heaviest home defeat

1-4: Hapoel Tel-Aviv v Leeds United AFC (match played at the Stadio Artemio Franchi in Florence) 14/11/02, UEFA Cup second round second leg

· Heaviest away defeat

4-0: Rangers FC v Hapoel Tel-Aviv

22/02/07, UEFA Cup round of 32 second leg

UEFA Champions League (group stage to final only)

· Biggest home win

N/A

· Biggest away win

N/A

Heaviest home defeat

1-3: Hapoel Tel-Aviv v Olympique Lyonnais 29/09/10, group stage

Heaviest away defeat

3-1: FC Schalke 04 v Hapoel

20/10/10, group stage

2-0: SL Benfica v Hapoel Tel-Aviv

14/09/10, group stage

FC Schalke 04 Formed: 1904

Nickname: S04, Die Königsblauen (The Royal Blues), Die Knappen (The Miners)

UEFA club competition honours (runners-up in brackets)

• UEFA Cup: 1997

• UEFA Intertoto Cup: 2003, 2004

Domestic honours (most recent triumph in brackets)

League title: 7 (1958) German Cup: 4 (2002)

Ten-year European record (UEFA Champions League unless indicated otherwise)

2009/10: Did not take part in UEFA club competition

2008/09: UEFA Cup group stage

2007/08: quarter-finals

2006/07: UEFA Cup first round

2005/06: UEFA Cup semi-finals (having transferred from UEFA Champions League group stage)

2004/05: UEFA Cup round of 32 (having qualified as UEFA Intertoto Cup winners) **2003/04:** UEFA Cup second round (having qualified as UEFA Intertoto Cup winners)

2002/03: UEFA Cup third round **2001/02:** first group stage

2000/01: Did not take part in UEFA club competition

Records

UEFA club competition

· Biggest home win

5-0: Schalke v FK Vardar

17/07/04, UEFA Intertoto Cup third round first leg

· Biggest away win

0-4: RCD Mallorca v Schalke

16/10/01, UEFA Champions League first group stage

0-4: SK Liepájas Metalurgs v Schalke 30/09/04, UEFA Cup first round second leg

· Heaviest home defeat

1-4: FC Schalke 04 v Wisla Kraków

10/12/02, UEFA Cup third round second leg

· Heaviest away defeat

5-1: Manchester City FC v Schalke

15/04/70, UEFA Cup Winners' Cup semi-final second leg

UEFA Champions League (group stage to final only)

· Biggest home win

3-0: Schalke v PSV Eindhoven

23/11/05, group stage

• Biggest away win

0-4: RCD Mallorca v Schalke

16/10/01, first group stage

· Heaviest home defeat

0-2: Schalke v Panathinaikos FC

11/09/01, first group stage

· Heaviest away defeat

2-0: Chelsea FC v Schalke

24/10/07, group stage

2-0: Panathinaikos FC v FC Schalke 04

24/10/01, first group stage

_egend

ALL-TIME STATISTICS

The all-time record of the competing clubs in UEFA club competition.

UEFA club competition: These are the official statistics considered valid for communicating official records in UEFA club competition defined as the European Champion Clubs' Cup, the UEFA Champions League, the UEFA Cup Winners' Cup (1960-1999), the UEFA Europa League, the UEFA Cup, the UEFA Super Cup (1973-to date), the UEFA Intertoto Cup and the European/South American Cup (1960-2004). Matches in the Inter-Cities Fairs Cup and the 1972 Super Cup are included only for information as these were not held under UEFA auspices, while the FIFA Club World Cup is excluded.

:: Match officials

The match officials appointed to officiate the fixture.

UCL: Total matches officiated in the UEFA Champions League from 1992/93 season, group stage to final only. Matches where the official has acted as the fourth official are not included in these statistics. These are the official statistics considered valid for communicating official records. UEFA: Total matches officiated in UEFA club competition including all qualifying round matches. Matches where the official has acted as the fourth official are not included in these statistics. These are the official statistics considered valid for communicating official records.

:: Competitions

Club competitions

UCL: UEFA Champions League/UEFA Champions League UEL: UEFA Europa League/UEFA Champions League

ECCC: European Champion Clubs' Cup/UEFA Champions League

UCUP: UEFA Cup • UCWC: UEFA Cup Winners' Cup SCUP: UEFA Super Cup • UIC: UEFA Intertoto Cup

ICF: Inter-Cities Fairs Cup

National team competitions

EURO: UEFA European Football Championship

WC: FIFA World Cup • CONFCUP: FIFA Confederations Cup

FRIE: Friendly internationals • U21FRIE: Under-21 friendly internationals

U21: UEFA European Under-21 Championship

U17: UEFA Under-17 Championship • U16: UEFA European Under-16

U19: UEFA Under-19 Championship • U18: UEFA European Under-18

Championship

:: Competition stages

F: Final

GS: Group stage GS1: First group stage GS2: Second group stage KO1: First knockout round PR: Preliminary round QF: Quarter-finals QR: Qualifying round QR1: First qualifying round QR2: Second qualifying round

FT: Final tournament **ELITE**: Elite round P-O 3rd: Third place play-off

GS - FT: Group stage - Final tournament

:: Statistics

(-): Denotes player substituted (*): Denotes player sent off

:: Squad list

D: Disciplinary S: Suspended

QR3: Third qualifying round

R1: First round R2: Second round R3: Third round R4: Fourth round SF: Semi-finals R16: Round of 16 R32: Round of 32 1st: first lea 2nd: second leg P-O: Play-off (R): Replay

PO - FT: Play-off for Final

Tournament

Prom/Rel P-O: Promotion/RelegationN/a: Not applicable

play-off

Championship

Championship

WWC: FIFA Women's World Cup • WCHAMP: UEFA European Women's

:: Other abbreviations

(aet): Match decided after extra timeNo.: Number aetps: Match decided after extra timeo.g.: Own goal

and penalty shoot-out

(p): Penalty ag: Match decided on away goals agg: Aggregate Pld: Matches played AP: Appearances Pos.: Position Comp.: Competition Pts: Points

R: Sent off (straight red card) D: Drawn

DoB: Date of birth Res.: Result

GA: Goals against sg: Match decided on "Silver Goal" GF: Goals for t: Match decided by toss of coin

gg: Match decided on "Golden Goal"W: Won L: Lost Y: Booked

Nat.: Nationality Y/R: Sent off (two yellow cards)

(+): Denotes player introduced

(+/-): Denotes player introduced and substituted

*: Misses next match if booked

#: Suspended for at least one match

UCLQ: Current season total UEFA Champions League appearances in the qualifying rounds and play-offs only

UCL: Current season total UEFA Champions League appearances from group stage onwards prior to current matchday UCL: Total appearances in the UEFA Champions League from 1992/93 season, group stage to final only

UEFA: All-time total appearances in UEFA club competition including qualifying

:: Disclaimer: Although UEFA has taken all reasonable care that the information contained within this document is accurate at the time of publication. no representation or guarantee (including liability towards third parties), expressed or implied, is made as to its accuracy, reliability or completeness. Therefore, UEFA assumes no liability for the use or interpretation of information contained herein. More information can be found in the competition regulations available on www.uefa.com.